# Minutes of the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board

### 24 November 2022

-: Present :-

Councillors Douglas-Dunbar, Dudley, Foster and Loxton

Non-voting Co-opted Member Pat Harris, Healthwatch

(Also in attendance: Councillors Brooks (virtually) and Johns (virtually))

#### 13. Apologies

It was reported that, in accordance with the wishes of the Liberal Democrat Group, the membership of the Sub-Board had been amended to include Councillor Dudley in place of the Chairwoman, Councillor Johns, who attended the meeting remotely due to having Covid-19 and therefore was unable to be a formal member of the Sub-Board).

As apologies had been received from the Chairwoman, Councillor Johns, Councillor Douglas-Dunbar was elected Chairwoman of the Sub-Board for the meeting.

#### 14. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Board held on 27 October 2022 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairwoman.

#### 15. Review of Dentistry Provision in Torbay

Melanie Stoker (Senior Programme Manager), Amy Claridge (Dental Team) and (Head of Stakeholder Engagement) from NHS England provided an update on dentistry provision in Torbay and responded to the following questions:

- How was dentistry funded and how were the units of dental activity (UDA) calculated which meant that dentists were paid different amounts across the country.
- When and how could contracts be changed.
- What work was being done to encourage children to visit the dentist.
- There were other benefits of visiting the dentist including overall oral health and spotting other disease e.g. cancer, what was being done in the community to encourage people to have better oral health and raise awareness of potential early warning signs of other health issues.

- There were a lot of pilots being carried out, how soon could they be rolled out in Torbay and what more could be done sooner to improve access to dentists and improve oral health.
- How soon was it expected that numbers of children visiting dentists would be back to pre-pandemic levels.
- What follow up action was being taken on the pilots e.g. the teeth brushing in schools to ensure that parents also follow this up with teeth brushing before bed and that support in school would not result in less support at home.
- What was being done to improve waiting times for adults and vulnerable children.
- What could be done to encourage more people into dentistry (e.g. improved working conditions, access to housing etc.) and to use dentistry staff for other roles to enable more patients to be seen.
- Dentists were expected to meet 96% target otherwise funding was clawed back, how does this process work and what was the impact.
- Yorkshire has dental access centres in their town centres was this something that could be looked at for Torbay.
- What work was being done to focus support on areas of deprivation and how this linked to schools (it was suggested that free school meals may be a good indicator to use to identify suitable children and families to support).
- How can we ensure that money clawed back from dentists in Torbay was invested in preventative and good oral health for people in Torbay.
- Were vaping and fizzy drinks considered bad for oral health.
- How were we monitoring the success of the dental reform programme.

Lincoln Sargeant (Director of Public Health, Mark Richards (Public Health Specialist), Wendy Okurut (Brixham Town Council) and Pat Harris (Healthwatch) also took part in the discussions and debate.

Resolved (unanimously):

That NHS England/the Integrated Care Partnership be requested to provide an annual update to the Torbay Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board on improvements in dental access and planned oral health improvement initiatives, including key outputs and key performance indicators via an accessible dashboard (the content of which to be agreed with the Director of Public Health).

### 16. One Devon Partnership Integrated Care Strategy

The Director of Public Health (Dr Lincoln Sargeant) outlined the submitted paper which provided an update on the development of the One Devon Partnership Integrated Care Strategy which was produced by the One Devon Integrated Care System (ICS) setting out the direction for the system on how NHS commissioners, local authorities, providers and other partners could deliver a more joined up, preventative and person centred care for the whole population across the course of their life. The Director of Public Health responded to the following questions:

• How could the Sub-Board fully comment on the document when it did not include target performance indicators to consider.

- There was a brief mention of workforce, what more could be included to reflect what was proposed to improve workforce planning.
- How would we ensure and measure the impact of prevention.
- What other community initiatives would be considered to help with prevention (e.g. community event in the library for free mouth cancer checks).
- How would the ICS ensure that patients only have to tell their story once as they move through the system.
- How would the ICS ensure that any housing targets did not conflict with the housing targets and strategies from the member Local Authorities.
- Would targets around improving housing standards be more appropriate.

Resolved (unanimously):

That the Board notes the progress of the One Devon Partnership Integrated Care Strategy and recommends that further details around prevention, housing and workforce are included as well as ensuring the voice of the child and young person is heard.

## 17. Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board Action Tracker

The Sub-Board noted the submitted action tracker.

Chairwoman